
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

You are requested to attend a meeting of 
the Licensing Committee

on Tuesday, 8 November 2016,  on the rising of the Licensing 
Regulatory Committee,

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal

Committee Membership

Councillors

James Airey
Rupert Audland

John Clough
Nick Cotton
Philip Dixon

Sheila Eccles (Chairman)
David Evans

Clare Feeney-Johnson
Alvin Finch (Vice-Chairman)

Gill Gardner
Tom Harvey
John Holmes
Helen Irving

Andrew Jarvis
Mel Mackie

Friday, 28 October 2016

Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:- 
Committee Administrator: Paul Rogers
Telephone: 01539 793497
e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I 

1 APOLOGIES 

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2 MINUTES 5 - 6

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 7 June 2016 (copy attached).

3 MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 7 - 10

To receive the minutes of the meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee held on 16 
August 2016 (copy attached) and for the Chairman of the Sub-Committee to 
sign, as a correct record.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests.

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public.

6 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so before 
the commencement of the meeting.  Information on how to make the application 
can be obtained by viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic and Electoral Services Manager on 01539 
717440.

(1) Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received 
from members of the public.

(2) Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public.

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7 FEES AND CHARGES POLICY 11 - 22

To consider a Fees and Charges policy that establishes the principles for the 
charging of services provided by the Public Protection Group.

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)

There are no items in this part of the Agenda.



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
07.06.2016 Licensing Committee 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Committee held in the Bindloss 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 7 June 2016, at 2.28 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Sheila Eccles (Chairman) 
  
 

Rupert Audland 
Philip Dixon 

 

John Holmes 
Helen Irving 

 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors John Clough, David Evans, 
Clare Feeney-Johnson and Mel Mackie. 
 

Officers 
 

Matthew Neal Solicitor to the Council 

Hardeep Burnley Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer 

Paul Rogers Assistant Committee Services Officer 

 

L/1 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference for the Licensing Committee be noted. 
 

L/2 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 January 2016. 
 

L/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were made. 
 

L/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED - That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

L/5 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
had been received. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 2.32 p.m. 

Page 5

Item No.2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1 
16.08.2016 Licensing Sub-Committee
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held in 
the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Tuesday,  
16 August 2016, at 9.30 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Clare Feeney-Johnson 
 

Tom Harvey 
 

John Holmes 
 

Officers 
 

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer 
Jason Habbershon Committee Services/Scrutiny Officer 
Nicola Hartley Senior Solicitor 
Tony Houlihan Licensing Officer 
 

LS/1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Tom Harvey be elected Chairman for the meeting. 
 

LS/2 APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no apologies and there had been no change in membership of the 
Sub-Committee and, therefore, no reconstitution was necessary. 
 

LS/3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

LS/4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

LS/5 INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made introductions and read out the procedure for the meeting. 
 

LS/6 VARIATION TO PREMISES LICENCE - SNOOTY FOX TAVERN, KIRKBY 
LONSDALE  
 
The Licensing Officer presented a report which requested consideration of a 
variation to the premises licence for the Snooty Fox Tavern, Kirkby Lonsdale, in 
light of relevant representations which had been submitted by interested parties. 
 
Clare Johnson, legal representative for the applicant, Enterprise Inns plc, 
presented the case on behalf of her client. She drew attention to the meeting with 

Page 7

Item No.3



2 
16.08.2016 Licensing Sub-Committee
 
residents held on 21 July 2016, the notes of which were contained with Appendix 
D to the report. Ms Johnson described the meeting as beneficial to those that 
attended, and noted that none of those individuals who had submitted a 
representation were present to address the Sub-Committee. The success of 
previous business ventures by the Tavern’s new tenants Mr Christopher Ledsham, 
Designated Premises Supervisor, and Mrs Jayne Ledsham were highlighted, and 
the Sub-Committee was informed that a significant financial investment would be 
made by Enterprise Inns plc, as Licence Holder, to improve the premises. Ms 
Johnson explained that, following the meeting with residents, Enterprise Inns plc 
were proposing an amendment to the submitted application. The application’s 
original request for a variation to the hours of recorded music (indoors) would be 
withdrawn, and an additional condition that would cease licensable activities and 
consumption of alcohol in the beer garden and courtyard at 23:00 hours was being 
proposed. The applicant further committed to the erection of notices reminding 
customers to be courteous when exiting the premises, and the installation of an 
additional CCTV camera. 
 
The Sub-Committee asked questions of clarification of the legal representative, the 
Designated Premises Supervisor and the applicant before the legal representative 
summarised their case. 
 
Note – The Sub-Committee passed a resolution to adjourn the meeting to exclude 
the press and public in making its decision and retired in accordance with 
Regulation 14(2) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) in order to further consider the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee, supported by the Senior Solicitor, Committee 
Services/Scrutiny Officer and Assistant Committee Services Officer, withdrew to 
consider the circumstances put forward and then reconvened to deliver the 
decision. 
 
RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the application be approved for the following activities:- 
 
Activity Proposed 
E) Live Music (Indoors) Monday to Sunday 12:00 hours to 

00:00 hours. 
 

F) Recorded Music (Indoors) Remains as per current licence. 
 

I) Late Night Refreshment Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours to 
01:00 hours the following day.  
 
An additional hour on the morning 
that British Summer Time begins. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



3 
16.08.2016 Licensing Sub-Committee
 
J) Supply of Alcohol both on and off 
the premises 

Monday to Thursday 10:00 hours to 
00:00 hours. 
 
Friday to Sunday 10:00 hours to 
01:00 hours the following day. 
  
From the end of permitted hours on 
New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour on the morning 
that British Summer Time begins; 
and 

 
(2) the application be approved subject to the mandatory conditions, together 
with the additional conditions proposed by the applicant which the Sub-Committee 
considered were appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives, as 
follows:- 
 
 (a) the beer garden/courtyard will close at 23:00 hours for all licensable 

activities and consumption of alcohol; 
 
 (b) notices to be erected in the premises reminding customers to be 

considerate to neighbours and leave quietly; and 
 
 (c) the condition currently on the licence which only permits children on 

the premises between 09:30 hours and 21:00 hours as long as they are 
dining to be removed. 

  
Reasons for Decision:- 
 
On 21 June 2016 Enterprise Inns plc made an application to vary a premises 
licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of the Snooty Fox Tavern, 33 Main 
Street in Kirkby Lonsdale. The premises concerned was situated near to the 
centre of Kirkby Lonsdale, on Main Street and in close proximity to the Market 
Square.  
 
(1) Full consideration was given to the 15 written objections received from local 
residents relating to the possible effect that the grant of a license may cause public 
nuisance and increase noise and disturbance and also have an impact upon the 
licensing objective of ‘the prevention of crime and disorder’. No residents who had 
objected attended the meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 
(2) The Sub-Committee noted that there had been no representations or 
objections from any of the seven responsible authorities.  
 
(3) The Sub-Committee took full consideration of the representation made by 
the applicant. The Sub-Committee was satisfied, having heard the evidence, that 
the licensing objectives would not be undermined and that the additional 
conditions agreed were reasonable, proportionate and necessary to enable the 
application to be granted whilst furthering the four licensing objectives. 

Page 9



4 
16.08.2016 Licensing Sub-Committee
 
  
The Chairman advised that there was a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 
within 21 days of the decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.15 a.m. 

Page 10



1

South Lakeland District Council
Licensing Committee 

Licensing Regulatory Committee 
8 November 2016

Fees and Charges Policy 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Sue Sanderson - Council Organisation 
and People Portfolio Holder

REPORT FROM: Simon Rowley – Assistant Director Neighbourhood 
Services

REPORT AUTHOR: Hardeep Burnley – Principal Food, Licensing and 
Safety Officer 

WARDS: N/A

KEY DECISION: N/A

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1 To have a policy in place that establishes the principles for the charging of 

services provided by the Public Protection Group. 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 It is recommended that Committees:-

(1) Note this report; and
(2) The attached Fees and Charges policy (which can be found in 

Appendix 1) be considered and adopted.
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
3.1 The policy establishes the principles for the charging of services provided by 

the Public Protection Group which includes Environmental Protection, 
Licensing and Food and Safety.  It aims to recognise the competing priorities 
the Council faces when charging residents, businesses and other users for its 
services. It should be noted that the policy does not replace the corporate 
fees and charges policy, and should be read in conjuction with the corporate 
fees and charges policy.  

3.2 The policy covers all services within Public Protection that can attract charges 
to external customers including residents, businesses and partner agencies. 

Page 11

Item No.7



2

3.3 Regard will be held to the policy when fees and charges are being reviewed, 
however the policy will not override specific legislation or statutory guidance 
where it exists. 

3.4 The policy states four principles for setting fees and charges.  These being: 
 Achieve full cost recovery 
 Ensure legal compliance 
 Meet the ambitions of the Council Plan
 Ensure fairness, be simple to understand and operate

Which are to be followed when setting or reviewing fees and charges. 

4.0 CONSULTATION
4.1 Although there has been no public consultation as there has been no 

community need identified, internal partners such as Legal and Finance have 
been consulted on the development of this policy.  The departments in 
questions were asked to consider the policy and make comments they 
seemed appropriate. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
5.1 The alternative option is not to approve the attached  Fees and Charges 

Policy.  This is not recommended as the authority does not have a policy 
specific to services delivered by the Public Protection Group and its 
development is considered best practice on setting and reviewing of fees and 
charges.  

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
6.1 The policy links to the Council Priority of Economy as the Policy will allow the 

group to set fees in a fair and consistent manner which will allow sustainable 
economic growth. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS
7.1 Financial and Resources
7.1.1 Legislation allows for each council to set the fees on a cost recovery basis, 

excluding enforcement.  The implementation of the policy will be absorbed 
within existing resources within the Group. 

7.2 Human Resources
7.2.1 Administration of the policy will be undertaken within existing resources. 

7.3 Legal
7.3.1 The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 state that fees should not be 

used as an economic deterrent to certain activities or to raise funds. 
Enforcement costs should not be assimilated with the fee. 

Page 12



3

7.3.2 In order to aid clarity, enforcement costs against unauthorised activities will 
not form part of the fee costs, that is to say formal action such as the service 
of notices, prosecution etc, will not form part of the fee cost.  Compliance 
action against authorised activities will form part of the fee. 

7.3.3 Fees and charges will be reviewed annually to achieve full cost recovery.  
However, it must be noted, fees set by legislation, such as charges relating to 
licence issues under the Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005 (which set 
an upper limit councils cannot exceed), charges for Environmental Permits will 
not be reviewed unless they are reviewed nationally.  

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4.1

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment?

Yes ☐ No ☒

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices.

Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

The overall impact of the policy are 
neutral as appropriate fees will be set 
on a cost recovery basis which will 
allow fair fees to be set and sustain 
economic growth. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity
7.5.1

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis?

Yes ☐ No ☒

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices.

Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

The overall impact of the policy are 
neutral as appropriate fees will be set 
on a cost recovery basis which will 
allow fair fees to be set and sustain 
economic growth.

7.6 Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required
No policy in place for 
the setting and 
reviewing of fees and 
charges  for services 
delivered by Public 

Unrealistic fees and 
charges being set which 
are unaffordable and 
weaken the Council’s 
financial position.  The 
Council will also be 

A policy required which 
sets out clear criteria for 
the setting and 
reviewing of fees and 
charges. 

Page 13



4

Risk Consequence Controls required
Protection liable to challenges. 

CONTACT OFFICERS
Report Author - Hardeep Burnley, Principal Food, Licensing and Safety Officer, Tel: 
01539-793473, hardeep.burnley@southlakeland.gov.uk

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 
Appendix No.
1 Fees and Charges Policy

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE
Name of Background 
document

Where it is available 

R (on the application of 
Hemming (t/a Simply 
Pleasure Ltd) and others) 
(Respondents) v Westminister 
City Council (Appellant). 

https://www.supremecourt.uk/cases/uksc-2013-
0146.html 

The Provision of Services 
Regulations 2009

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2999/pdfs/u
ksi_20092999_en.pdf 

TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

13/09/2016 n/a 13/09/2016 n/a n/a

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

n/a 08/11/2016 n/a 13/09/2016 13/09/2016

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

Public 
Protection 
Manager 

13/09/2016 n/a n/a 17/06/2016 

Page 14

mailto:hardeep.burnley@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.supremecourt.uk/cases/uksc-2013-0146.html
https://www.supremecourt.uk/cases/uksc-2013-0146.html
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2999/pdfs/uksi_20092999_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2009/2999/pdfs/uksi_20092999_en.pdf


www.southlakeland.gov.uk

Fees and Charges Policy

South Lakeland District Council

Public Protection Group

Version 3
October 2016

Page 15

adam.pritchett
Typewritten Text

adam.pritchett_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1.

adam.pritchett_2
Typewritten Text



Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

Contents
page

1. Purpose 3

2. Scope and application 3

3. Principles for setting charges 3

4. Provision of service regulations 4

5. Income collection and bad debt 4

6. Reviewing and increasing charges 4

7. New charges and trading 5

8. Refunds and cancellation 5

9. Works in default 5

10. Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) 5

page 2 Page 16



page 3

Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

1. Purpose 

1.1 This policy establishes the principles for the
charging of services provided by the Public
Protection Group which includes environmental
protection, licensing, food and safety.  It aims to
recognise the competing priorities the council
faces when charging residents, businesses and
other users for its services. 

2. Scope and application 

2.1 This policy covers all services within Public
Protection that can attract charges to external
customers including residents, businesses and
partner agencies. 

2.2 Regard will be had to this policy, the
Corporate Charging Policy and the Medium Term
Financial Plan when fees and charges are being
reviewed. 

2.3 This policy does not override specific
legislation or statutory guidance where it exists. 

3. Principles for setting 
charges    

3.1 There are four key principles for setting
fees and charges: 

• Achieve full cost recovery 

• Ensure legal compliance 

• Meet the ambitions of the Council Plan

• Ensure fairness, be simple to understand
and operate

3.2 Achieve full cost recovery 

The charging arrangements for any service
should, where practicable, meet the full cost of
providing the service and including arrangements
for income collection, in line with the council’s
policies and procedures. The full cost of provision
should also include: 

• A share of central support costs;

• The cost of the officers involved to include
on costs;

• The provision of any necessary
equipment;

• Development and maintenance of policy,
procedure and guidance; 

• Management costs specific to the function

and more generally; 

• Provision of any legal costs where

reasonably incurred.

3.3 Ensure legal compliance 

The council must comply with all legal

requirements for setting fees or charges and

generating income.

3.4 Meet the ambitions of the corporate

plan 

Income generation must be balanced against the

wider aims of the council.  The fees and charges

must obtain a reasonable balance between

income generation and impact on the delivery of

corporate priorities. Consideration should be

given to the following factors: 

• Access, affordability and demand should

be fully considered; 

• Where services are provided on a trade

basis, charges will be set at the maximum

level the market can bear without

reducing demand to a point at which the

overall financial position of the service

offered is weakened; 

• Any exemptions and concessions on

standard charges should be clearly

justified.  They should be only provided

for services where benefits to the

recipient groups are clearly evidenced

and are consistent with the council’s plans

and strategies.

3.5 Ensure fairness, be simple to 

understand and operate 

Any fee structure should be easy to understand

and simple to operate in practice.  The fee

structure should be designed to have a fair and

equitable reflection of costs relative to the level

of resource required.  Fees and charges should

be published and easily accessible. 

These guiding principles aim to ensure that the

fees and charges are set within a framework of

value for money where performance, access and

equality are considered fully and appropriately

and decisions demonstrate a transparent and

balanced approach.  

Page 17



Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

page 4

4. Provision of service 
regulations 

4.1 Fees should not be used as an economic

deterrent to certain activities or to raise funds.

Enforcement costs should not be assimilated with

the service fee. 

4.2 In order to aid clarity enforcement costs

against unauthorised activities will not form part

of the fee costs.  Compliance action against

authorised activities will form part of the fee.

Compliance and enforcement terms will be

defined in this way. Enforcement action is defined

as any formal action taken in accordance with the

Neighbourhood Services Enforcement Policy. 

4.3 Ring-fenced accounts or other financial

systems will be used to ensure that fees do not

cross subsidise other parts of the council and any

deficits or surpluses are carried forward into

subsequent years’ calculations.  It would be

beneficial to avoid large fee changes and so

accounts will be managed to: 

• Ensure they balance over a three to five

year cycle where possible; 

• Carry a working balance to accommodate

fluctuations in income or expenditure;

4.4 Where any account is in deficit or surplus

the appropriate amount of interest may be

incorporated into the accounts. 

5. Income collection and bad 
debt 

5.1 It is vital that the council receives payments

for its service provision.  Wherever possible,

customers should be required to pay charges in

advance of the delivery of services or the point

of delivery to minimise the risk of non-payment

and to assist the customer to manage their

liabilities to the council. 

5.2 To facilitate payment and provide a

customer centred service, multiple payment

methods should be available to the customer,

although e-payments and (where appropriate)

setting up of direct debits should be promoted as

the preferred method.  Payment methods may be

restricted where the costs of collection may be

disproportionally high compared to the amount

collected. 

5.3 Where customers fail to pay for fees and

charges, they should be made liable for

additional costs of enforcement and collection

where possible.  Customers must be clearly

aware of this additional liability.  Where the law

allows, any licence, permit or similar permission

may be revoked or suspended until payment is

received and may include historic bad debt. 

6. Reviewing and increasing 
charges 

6.1 Fees and charges will be reviewed

annually to achieve full cost recovery, in line with

the budget setting timetable and the Medium

Term Financial Plan. However, it must be noted,

fees set by legislation, such as charges relating

to licences issued under the Licensing Act 2003,

Gambling Act 2005, and charges set for Private

Water Supplies and Environmental Permits, will

not be reviewed unless they are reviewed

nationally.

6.2 The approval or amendment of fees and

charges will be in accordance with the council’s

constitution, scheme of delegation and financial

procedures. 

6.3 Where there is no fee for a service which

can be charged for, or where current charges

represent less than the full cost of providing the

service, the reasons should be reconsidered and

justified as part of the annual review. 

6.4 Where appropriate, service users and other

relevant stakeholders should be informed in

advance of all proposals to introduce or amend

charges significantly above inflation or where

required by statute.  Emphasis will be placed on

demonstrating that the fee and charge levels set

represent good value for money, considering the

quality of the services provided and charge levels

applied in comparable authorities. 

6.5 Equality impact assessments will be

carried out where appropriate. 

6.6 Clear records of any charging review,

including public notices or consultation will be

kept in line with corporate retention policy.

Page 18



7. New charges and trading 

7.1 The Local Government Act 2003 allows

charges to be made for discretionary services.

Charges cannot be made for any services for

which there is a duty to provide or where

legislation expressly prohibits the charging for

discretionary services.  This may include charges

for new and innovative services. Such

discretionary services may be provided and

charged for, provided that they benefit residents,

businesses and other service users, meet the

council priorities and generate income. 

7.2 Trading allows the council to make a

surplus but there are some significant

restrictions.  The finance and legal departments

will be consulted regarding ideas on charging for

discretionary services. 

7.3 Careful consideration must be given to the

correct coding for VAT.  Advice should be sought

on this issue for each case.  

8. Refunds and cancellation 

8.1 Refunds will only be provided where the

administration process has not been started or

legislation requires a refund to be given.  Some

refunds will remain at the discretion of the

service, for example no refund will be given for a

withdrawn or returned application. 

8.2 Where services have been booked or

requested the council may incur costs should a

cancellation occur.  It is reasonable for the

council to recover these costs. 

9. Works in default 

9.1 The council may require certain works to

be undertaken to remedy a situation, by the

service of a legal notice on the owner, occupier or

the other person considered responsible.  In

certain circumstances, these works are

undertaken by the council, to remedy such a

situation, for which reasonable charges are

made. 

9.2 The charges would include the actual cost

of the works, by a third party if necessary, and

appropriate sum for officer time, based on an

hourly rate and the cost of administration of the

charge. 

10. Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) 

10.1 There are a number of offences for which

the option of a fixed penalty fine exists.  The

issue of a FPN will not be used as a form of

income. 

10.2 The level of fine to be issued will depend

on the wording of the various pieces of

legislation.  In cases where a range of potential

fines exist the council will set the fine based on: 

• The severity of the offence 

• The cost of issuing the FPN and collecting

the fine 

• Whether the fine should act as a deterrent 

10.3 Unless the law specifies how FPN fines are

to be spent they will generally be allocated to

fund enforcement or promotional campaigns

related to the function under which they were

issued. 

page 5

Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank.

Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

page 6 Page 20



page 7

Public Protection Group Fees and Charges Policy

This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 21



Page 22


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Minutes of Licensing Sub-Committee
	7 Fees and Charges Policy
	Fees and Charges Policy 2016 - Appendix 1




